
NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Thursday, December 19, 2024 
7:00 p.m. in Meeting Room B 

AGENDA 

• Approve 2025 Per Capita Grant application. [Action Item]
• Executive Session: The Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline,

Performance or Dismissal of Specific Employees of the public body.  [Action Item]

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, 
requests that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the 
meetings or facilities contact the Library Director at 847-376-2789 to allow the Library to 
make reasonable accommodations.  

1



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
Thursday, December 19, 2024 
7:00 p.m. in Meeting Room B 

 
I. Call to Order. (7:00 p.m.) 

 
II. Roll Call. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy. [Action Item] 

 
V. Consideration of the Agenda. [Action Item] 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
VII. Consent Agenda. [Action Item] (7:10 p.m.) 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting, Regular Board 
Meeting, and Search Committee Meetings, November 2024. 

B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for November 2024.
 Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Statistics Report for November 2024. 
2. Director’s Report for November 2024. 

 
VIII. New Business. (7:15 p.m.) 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments in the amount 
$324,107.42. [Action Item] 

B. Approve 2025 Per Capita application. [Action Item]  
 

IX. Search Committee Report  
A. Update on status of the Director Search process.  

 
X. Other. 

 
XI. Announcements.  

 
XII. Correspondence. 
 
XIII. Executive Session. 

A. Update on filed, pending, probable, or imminent litigation.  

2



B. The Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance or 
Dismissal of Specific Employees of the public body.  [Action Item] 
 

 
XIV. Adjournment. (7:30 p.m.) 

 
This meeting will be video recorded, and available on the Library’s website. 

3



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 

 
I. Call to Order.  

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m.  
 

II. Roll Call. 
 
Roll call indicated the following trustees were PRESENT: Dr. Gregory Sarlo, Kristen Graack, 
Denise Hudec, Lisa DuBrock, Robert Flinn, Christine Halblander, Nick Harkovich, Michelle 
Shimon-Hutchison. ABSENT: Rachel Rice. ALSO PRESENT: DPPL Staff Laurie Papadourakis, 
Heather Imhoff, Joanie Sebastian, Michelle Meyer-Edley, Lauren Wolf; and  Friends of the 
Library President John Leach.  

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

 
N/A. 
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda. 
 
Motion by Halblander, seconded by Shimon-Hutchison, to accept the agenda as 
presented.  VOTE: AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Shimon-
Hutchison, Sarlo. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
None. 

 
VII. Consent Agenda.  

 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Meeting, Management Committee Meeting 

and Regular Board Meeting - October 2024. 
B. Acceptance of Reports for October 2024.  

1. Statistics Report for October 2024. 
2. Director’s Report for October 2024. 

 
Hudec asked that section B2 be pulled.  
 

4



Motion by Graack, seconded by Halblander to accept the Consent Agenda as presented, 
minus B2. VOTE: AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Shimon-
Hutchison, Sarlo. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Hudec stated that Early Voting at DPPL went very well and both she and Acting Interim 
Director Papadourakis thanked staff for their work in supporting the process.  
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack to accept B2 of the Consent Agenda. VOTE: AYES: 
DuBrock, Flinn, Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Shimon-Hutchison, Sarlo. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VIII. New Business.  
 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments in the amount 

$529,415.91. 
 

Motion by Hudec, seconded by Shimon-Hutchison, to Approve Payment of Vendor Checks 
Report and ACH Payments in the amount of $529,415.91 as listed on the vendor checks 
report of October 2024 and authorize Library Director Jo Bonell to transfer the amount 
required to the Library’s operating account. 
 
B. 2023 – 2025 Strategic Goals Review. 

 
2024 actions to meet plan goals were reviewed. No action was needed.  Papadourakis 
indicated the 2026 – 2028 planning will begin in mid-2025.  
 

IX. Management Committee Report.  
 
A. Review and approve new job descriptions for The Canvas.  

 
Motion by Graack, seconded by Hudec to accept the job descriptions for Creative Space 
Assistant and Creative Space Coordinator as presented. VOTE: AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, 
Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Shimon-Hutchison, Sarlo. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 

X. Other. 
 
Building and Grounds Committee Chair Harkovich announced that construction on The 
Canvas, DPPL’s new makerspace, is proceeding well and is anticipated to be completed in 
December.  
 

XI. Announcements.  
 
President Sarlo asked that all Trustees review the Serving Our Public 4.0 handbook prior to 
the December meeting, as required for DPPL to file for the State of IL Per Capita Grant. 
 
Acting Interim Director Papadourakis announced that, after many years of trying, DPPL has 
successfully secured an E-rate grant in the amount of $18K for the 2023/2024 year.  

 

5



XII. Correspondence. 
 
Papadourakis read a letter from the Maine West Department Chair for Special Education 
thanking DPPL for supporting the needs of students with disabilities at the Library, and for 
“being a part of the community that embraces the diversity of its members and welcomes 
all to gather and learn in their space.” 
  

XIII. Adjournment.   
 

Motion by Hudec, seconded by Shimon-Hutchison to adjourn. VOTE: AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, 
Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Shimon-Hutchison, Sarlo. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.  

6



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Management Committee 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 

  
 
I. Call to Order.   

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:34 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call. 
 
Roll call indicated the following committee members were PRESENT: Kristen Graack, 
Denise Hudec. ABSENT: Rachel Rice. ALSO PRESENT: Trustees Lisa DuBrock. DPPL Staff 
Laurie Papadourakis, Heather Imhoff, Joanie Sebastian, Michelle Meyer-Edley, Lauren Wolf.   

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

 
N/A.  
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda.  
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack to accept the agenda as presented.  VOTE: AYES: 
Graack, Hudec. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
None. 

 
VII. Review and approve new job descriptions for The Canvas.  

 
Motion by Graack, seconded by Hudec to accept the job descriptions for Creative Space 
Assistant and Creative Space Coordinator as presented. VOTE: AYES: Graack, Hudec. 
NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VIII. Adjournment.   
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack to adjourn.  VOTE: AYES: Graack, Hudec. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

7



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Ad Hoc Search Committee 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 

  
 
I. Call to Order.  

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:34 p.m.  
 

II. Roll Call. 
 
Roll call indicated the following committee members were PRESENT: Kristen Graack, 
Denise Hudec. ABSENT: Rachel Rice. ALSO PRESENT: Trustees Lisa DuBrock. DPPL Staff 
Heather Imhoff.   

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

 
N/A.  
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda.  
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack to accept the agenda as presented.  VOTE: AYES: 
Graack, Hudec. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VI. Public Comments and Questions. 
 
None. 

 
VII. Executive Session.   

 
A. The Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance or 

Dismissal of Specific Employees of the public body.  
 

Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack to enter Executive Session.  VOTE: AYES: Graack, 
Hudec. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The committee entered Executive Session at 7:36 p.m.  
The committee exited Executive Session at 8:02 p.m.  
 
There was no action to report.  

8



 
 
VIII. Adjournment.   

 
Motion by Graack, seconded by Hudec to adjourn. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m.   

 
 
  

9



Des Plaines Public Library

Monthly Financial Report

For the Month Ended November 30, 2024

Prepared by:

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

668 N. River Road, Naperville, IL 60563

Phone: 630.393.1483     www.lauterbachamen.com

10



Des Plaines Public Library

Table of Contents

Page

Financial Statements

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet.................................................................. 2-1

Governmental Funds - Income Statement............................................................ 3-1

Supplementary Information

Treasurers Report........................................................................................... 4-1

Balance Sheet................................................................................................. 5-x

Revenue Report.............................................................................................. 6-x

Expenditures Report........................................................................................ 7-x

Check Register................................................................................................ 8-x

Vendor Check Report..................................................................................... 9-x

ACH Payments............................................................................................... 10-x

Cash Flow Summary...................................................................................... 11-x

11



Financial Statements

12



Des Plaines Public Library

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2024

General Capital

Fund Projects Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash and Investments 6,732,064.03$ 880,189.54$ 7,612,253.57$

Prepaids - 0.00 -

Receivables
Receivable - Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 - 6,251,585.00

Receivable - Grants - - -

Receivable - Miscellaneous - - -

Total Assets 12,983,649.03$ 880,189.54$ 13,863,838.57$

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 190,713.15$ 12,627.39$ 203,340.54$

Accrued Payroll 150,188.96 - 150,188.96

Due to other funds 90,421.46 - 90,421.46

Total Liabilities 431,323.57 12,627.39 443,950.96

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 - 6,251,585.00

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,682,908.57 12,627.39 6,695,535.96

FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance - Unreserved 6,300,740.46 867,562.15 7,168,302.61

Total Fund Balance 6,300,740.46 867,562.15 7,168,302.61

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance 12,983,649.03$ 880,189.54$ 13,863,838.57$

2-1

13



Des Plaines Public Library

Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances

For the 11 Months Ended November 30, 2024

General Capital

Fund Projects Fund Total

REVENUES

Taxes 6,027,734.44$ -$ 6,027,734.44$

Intergovernmental 1,677,694.20 - 1,677,694.20

Fines & Fees 40,264.28 - 40,264.28

Interest 379,013.81 64,811.83 443,825.64

Special Events and Programs 12,401.30 - 12,401.30

Miscellaneous 80,321.23 200,000.00 280,321.23

Total Revenues 8,217,429.26 264,811.83 8,482,241.09

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 3,063,479.63$ -$ 3,063,479.63$

Operating 2,047,606.94 - 2,047,606.94

Library Materials 835,477.85 - 835,477.85

Capital Outlay 113,576.04 1,068,905.39 1,182,481.43

Other Expenditures 114,951.02 - 114,951.02

Total Expenditures 6,175,091.48 1,068,905.39 7,243,996.87

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,042,337.78 (804,093.56) 1,238,244.22

FUND BALANCES

Beginning of the year 4,258,402.68 1,671,655.71 5,930,058.39

End of the period 6,300,740.46$ 867,562.15$ 7,168,302.61$

3-1

14



Supplementary Information

15



Cash Account               Invested

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 500.00

201-1102080 - Village B&T Donation #9821 31,146.20

201-1102030 - Village B&T Donation #6718 89,576.36

201-1102040 - Village B&T Donation #9878 234,307.61

201-1102060 - Village B&T Checking #0289 407,460.04

201-1102050 - Wintrust Brokerage 62,302.61

201-1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 5,905,778.52

202-1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 880,189.54

6,785,968.06

201-1102070 - INB E-Pay 992.69

Total Invested 7,612,253.57$

Des Plaines Public Library

Treasurer's Report as of November 30, 2024

4-1

16



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

General Fund

Assets

1101000 - Petty Cash 500.00 0.00 500.00

1102030 - Village B&T Donation #6718 7,006.70 82,569.66 89,576.36

1102040 - Village B&T Donation #9878 233,387.11 920.50 234,307.61

1102050 - Wintrust Brokerage 61,476.72 825.89 62,302.61

1102060 - Village B&T Checking #0289 889,030.19 (481,570.15) 407,460.04

1102070 - INB E-Pay 974.66 18.03 992.69

1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 6,007,281.82 (101,503.30) 5,905,778.52

1102080 - Village B&T Donation #9821 57,457.18 (26,310.98) 31,146.20

1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 0.00 6,251,585.00

1119301 - Prepaid Expense 122,346.46 (122,346.46) 0.00

13,631,045.84 (647,396.81) 12,983,649.03

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2401000 - Accounts Payable 300,085.71 (109,372.56) 190,713.15

2401002 - Payroll Liabilities (38,941.07) 38,941.07 0.00

2430707 - Due to Library Comp Abs 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 50,208.96 0.00 50,208.96

2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Property Tax 6,251,585.00 0.00 6,251,585.00

2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other (20.00) 100,000.00 99,980.00

6,653,340.06 29,568.51 6,682,908.57

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 4,258,402.68 0.00 4,258,402.68

4,258,402.68 0.00 4,258,402.68

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 10,911,742.74 29,568.51 10,941,311.25

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 2,719,303.10 (676,965.32) 2,042,337.78

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2024

5-1
17



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

Capital Projects Fund

Assets

1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 750,280.38 129,909.16 880,189.54

750,280.38 129,909.16 880,189.54

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2401000 - Accounts Payable 46,832.83 (34,205.44) 12,627.39

46,832.83 (34,205.44) 12,627.39

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 1,671,655.71 0.00 1,671,655.71

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 1,718,488.54 (34,205.44) 1,684,283.10

Excess Revenues Over Expenses (968,208.16) 164,114.60 (804,093.56)

Compensated Absences Fund

Assets

1120201 - Due From Library 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2450035 - Accrued ST-LT Comp Absence 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2024

5-2
18



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

Fixed Assets Fund

Assets

1203000 - Fixed Assets - Improvements 2,400,172.00 0.00 2,400,172.00

1204201 - Fixed Assets - Library Equipment 1,658,808.60 0.00 1,658,808.60

1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehicles 24,954.39 0.00 24,954.39

1207000 - Fixed Assets - Construction In Progress 95,151.37 0.00 95,151.37

1209900 - Fixed Assets -  Accumulated Depreciation (1,608,862.00) 0.00 (1,608,862.00)

2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets 2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Long Term Liability Fund

Assets

1805920 - Deferred Outflows - IMRF 2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2812092 - OPEB Liability 1,906,984.00 0.00 1,906,984.00

2973920 - Deferred Inflows - IMRF 145,812.00 0.00 145,812.00

2,052,796.00 0.00 2,052,796.00

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 297,019.00 0.00 297,019.00

297,019.00 0.00 297,019.00

Total Liabilities and Net LT Liabilities 2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2024

5-3
19



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Collected Collected Amount Remaining Collected

General Fund

Taxes

201-4810035 - Property Taxes 2023 0.00 6,027,734.44 6,100,000.00 72,265.56 98.82

0.00 6,027,734.44 6,100,000.00 72,265.56 98.82

Intergovernmental

201-4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 94,451.24 1,583,041.25 306,052.00 (1,276,989.25) 517.25

201-4822040 - State Grant - Per Capita 0.00 90,102.38 89,496.00 (606.38) 100.68

201-4822090 - Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

201-4822095 - State Grant - Library 3,500.00 4,550.57 10,000.00 5,449.43 45.51

97,951.24 1,677,694.20 405,548.00 (1,272,146.20) 413.69

Fines & Fees

201-4850101 - Library Fees 674.18 19,933.34 10,000.00 (9,933.34) 199.33

201-4850201 - Copying Fees 1,078.01 16,241.29 10,000.00 (6,241.29) 162.41

201-4850203 - Lost Materials 27.99 392.65 0.00 (392.65) 0.00

201-4850207 - Non-Res Cards 408.75 1,552.00 200.00 (1,352.00) 776.00

201-4850208 - Meeting Room Fees 60.00 2,145.00 1,000.00 (1,145.00) 214.50

2,248.93 40,264.28 21,200.00 (19,064.28) 189.93

Special Programs & Events

201-4850215 - Friends of the Library Reimbursements 0.00 12,401.30 20,000.00 7,598.70 62.01

0.00 12,401.30 20,000.00 7,598.70 62.01

Interest

201-4830010 - Gain/Loss on Investments 820.89 146,364.78 0.00 (146,364.78) 0.00

201-4890010 - Interest Income 26,172.51 232,649.03 75,000.00 (157,649.03) 310.20

26,993.40 379,013.81 75,000.00 (304,013.81) 505.35

Other Revenue

201-4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 65.15 965,000.00 964,934.85 0.01

201-4899910 - Vending Machine Revenue 0.00 540.21 1,000.00 459.79 54.02

201-4899920 - Library Donations 20.00 67,839.52 150,000.00 82,160.48 45.23

201-4899940 - Friends Book Sale 1,063.37 11,876.35 14,000.00 2,123.65 84.83

1,083.37 80,321.23 1,130,000.00 1,049,678.77 7.11

Total General Fund 128,276.94 8,217,429.26 7,751,748.00 (465,681.26) 106.01

Des Plaines Public Library
Revenue Report

For the 11 Months Ended November 30, 2024

6-1
20



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Collected Collected Amount Remaining Collected

Capital Projects Fund

Interest

202-4890010 - Interest Income 3,153.85 64,811.83 75,000.00 10,188.17 86.42

3,153.85 64,811.83 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Other Financing Sources

202-4830020 - Makerspace Donation 200,000.00 200,000.00 0.00 (200,000.00) 0.00

202-4898902 - Transfer from Library Fund 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00

200,000.00 200,000.00 500,000.00 300,000.00 40.00

Total Capital Projects Fund 203,153.85 264,811.83 575,000.00 (310,188.17) (46.05)

Total of All Funds 231,430.79 8,482,241.09 8,326,748.00 (155,493.09) 101.87

Des Plaines Public Library
Revenue Report

For the 11 Months Ended November 30, 2024

6-2
21



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Expended Expended Amount Remaining Expend.

General Fund

Salaries

5910100 - Full-time Salaries 298,068.73 2,337,991.49 2,672,875.00 334,883.51 87.47

5910200 - Part-time Salaries 93,512.52 725,488.14 992,439.00 266,950.86 73.10

391,581.25 3,063,479.63 3,665,314.00 601,834.37 83.58

Benefits

5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 0.00 1,734.00 15,000.00 13,266.00 11.56

5918020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 28,578.87 223,373.64 276,105.00 52,731.36 80.90

5918021 - Employer Contribution - IMRF 13,661.25 120,309.87 209,869.00 89,559.13 57.33

5918040 - Life Insurance Premiums 178.65 1,254.85 1,978.00 723.15 63.44

5918050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 53,736.04 380,162.33 602,154.00 221,991.67 63.13

5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 17,671.34 125,012.02 198,005.00 72,992.98 63.14

5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 2,850.94 20,173.49 31,958.00 11,784.51 63.13

5918070 - Workers Compensation 0.00 11,447.00 14,000.00 2,553.00 81.76

116,677.09 883,467.20 1,349,069.00 465,601.80 65.49

Contractual Services

5920100 - Legal Fees 0.00 209.30 10,000.00 9,790.70 2.09

5920110 - Professional Services 35,455.59 444,819.89 442,380.00 (2,439.89) 100.55

5920120 - Communication Services 2,881.71 34,219.62 46,300.00 12,080.38 73.91

5920140 - Integrated Library System 0.00 85,093.51 87,000.00 1,906.49 97.81

5920202 - Conferences 420.00 16,197.11 28,400.00 12,202.89 57.03

5920204 - Training 12.99 2,661.99 2,600.00 (61.99) 102.38

5920210 - Marketing 660.94 49,647.39 61,265.00 11,617.61 81.04

5920220 - Membership Dues 270.00 6,974.00 7,000.00 26.00 99.63

5920990 - Property/Liability Insurance 0.00 48,550.52 70,000.00 21,449.48 69.36

5930010 - R&M Equipment 5,610.48 81,636.41 81,660.00 23.59 99.97

5930020 - R&M Buildings & Structures 7,378.00 101,234.59 116,512.00 15,277.41 86.89

5930030 - R&M Vehicles 0.00 47.00 4,500.00 4,453.00 1.04

5930210 - Rental of Equipment 2,720.00 21,559.18 25,620.00 4,060.82 84.15

5930320 - Cleaning/Custodial Services 4,892.50 59,703.00 90,900.00 31,197.00 65.68

5930490 - Refuse Contract 684.73 8,107.39 6,300.00 (1,807.39) 128.69

5960040 - Pre-Employment Testing 0.00 1,001.20 3,500.00 2,498.80 28.61

5960065 - Bank Fees 258.58 860.78 300.00 (560.78) 286.93

5960070 - Mileage 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

5960210 - Special Event Programming 4,116.23 77,900.70 63,500.00 (14,400.70) 122.68

5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 22,383.80 123,716.16 133,225.00 9,508.84 92.86

87,745.55 1,164,139.74 1,281,462.00 117,322.26 90.84

Des Plaines Public Library
Expense Report

For the 11 Months Ended November 30, 2024

7-1
22



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Expended Expended Amount Remaining Expend.

Commodities

5970100 - Supplies 7,553.32 55,432.19 113,000.00 57,567.81 49.06

5970110 - Meals 0.00 1,653.68 3,000.00 1,346.32 55.12

5970170 - Janitorial 1,098.05 10,359.97 19,965.00 9,605.03 51.89

5970260 - Postage & Parcel 2,000.00 16,224.50 16,000.00 (224.50) 101.40

5970500 - Water Bill 0.00 7,949.95 7,000.00 (949.95) 113.57

5970600 - Ebooks/Books 29,659.95 307,558.89 382,000.00 74,441.11 80.51

5970610 - E-audio/Audio 812.90 39,744.28 69,000.00 29,255.72 57.60

5970620 - E-Subscriptions/Subscriptions 3,187.96 54,227.71 51,430.00 (2,797.71) 105.44

5970630 - Visual Materials 7,333.46 161,625.17 194,900.00 33,274.83 82.93

5970640 - Databases 108.00 154,648.63 170,000.00 15,351.37 90.97

5970810 - Natural Gas 579.21 15,666.40 28,000.00 12,333.60 55.95

5970850 - Gasoline 0.00 215.66 800.00 584.34 26.96

5970900 - Equipment < $10,000 0.00 10,170.82 13,900.00 3,729.18 73.17

52,332.85 835,477.85 1,068,995.00 233,517.15 78.16

Capital Expenditures

5980300 - Improvements 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00

5980410 - Computer Hardware 3,374.88 11,505.61 10,000.00 (1,505.61) 115.06

5980420 - Computer Software 6,406.67 96,697.82 105,611.00 8,913.18 91.56

5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 506.36 5,372.61 54,500.00 49,127.39 9.86

10,287.91 113,576.04 190,111.00 76,534.96 59.74

Other Funding Activities

5990900 - Per Capita Grant Expenditures 45,554.24 102,039.93 93,760.00 (8,279.93) 108.83

5990940 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00

5999940 - Friends Books Sale 1,063.37 12,911.09 0.00 (12,911.09) 0.00

46,617.61 114,951.02 593,760.00 478,808.98 19.36

Total General Fund Expenditures 705,242.26 6,175,091.48 8,148,711.00 1,973,619.52 75.78

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Expenditures

5980300 - Improvements 0.00 0.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 0.00

5980400 - Equipment 0.00 316,467.70 369,500.00 369,500.00 0.00

5980410 - Computer Hardware 1,426.00 195,461.85 246,800.00 246,800.00 0.00

5980420 - Computer Software 0.00 3,214.43 0.00 0.00 0.00

5980430 - Makerspace Donation Expenses 83,122.49 553,761.41 0.00 0.00 0.00

5980600 - Furniture and Fixtures (45,509.24) 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00

39,039.25 1,068,905.39 1,316,300.00 (1,068,905. 39) 0.00

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 39,039.25 1,068,905.39 1,316,300.00 247,394.61 81.21

Total of All Funds 744,281.51 7,243,996.87 9,465,011.00 2,221,014.13 76.53

Des Plaines Public Library
Expense Report

For the 11 Months Ended November 30, 2024

7-2
23



Check Number Check Date Payee Amount

Vendor Checks

9004 12/19/24 CDW GOVERNMENT 334.77

9005 12/19/24 Continental Resources, Inc. 2,894.62

9006 12/19/24 Glowforge, Inc 6,546.00

9007 12/19/24 IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 1,426.00

20507 12/19/24 ABLE CARD, LLC 2,300.00

20508 12/19/24 BAKER & TAYLOR 16,219.36

20509 12/19/24 BISHOP PLUMBING, INC. 1,195.00

20510 12/19/24 CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 4,799.29

20511 12/19/24 COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 698.00

20512 12/19/24 CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES CORP 4,892.50

20513 12/19/24 D&Z HOUSE OF BOOKS 1,470.84

20514 12/19/24 D.E.S. Painting, Inc. 3,450.00

20515 12/19/24 FITTLE, LLC 2,720.00

20516 12/19/24 FLOOD BROTHERS DISPOSAL & RECYCLING SERVICES 684.73

20517 12/19/24 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS 1,098.05

20518 12/19/24 ILLINOIS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION 55.00

20519 12/19/24 IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 4,555.29

20520 12/19/24 IMPACT NETWORKING, LLC. 617.19

20521 12/19/24 JOHN G DONAHUE 180.00

20522 12/19/24 JOURNAL AND TOPICS NEWSPAPERS 640.00

20523 12/19/24 Larry Huffman 60.00

20524 12/19/24 LIMRICC 64,490.49

20525 12/19/24 MidAmerica Books 144.87

20526 12/19/24 MIDWEST TAPE 6,186.54

20527 12/19/24 OAKBROOK MECHANICAL SERVICES 3,230.00

20528 12/19/24 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP, INC. 47,042.81

20529 12/19/24 OVERDRIVE, INC. 5,134.78

20530 12/19/24 Playaway Products LLC 189.97

20531 12/19/24 RAILS 15,000.00

20532 12/19/24 Schaumburg Township District Library 92.59

20533 12/19/24 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 284.00

20534 12/19/24 SEN SOURCE 669.00

20535 12/19/24 THOMAS KLISE/CRIMSON MULTIMEDIA 1,074.45

52159 11/30/24 BANKCARD SERVICES 20,445.34

52160 11/30/24 ADP 988.21

52161 11/30/24 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 300.00

52162 11/30/24 FRIENDS OF THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 1,063.37

52163 11/30/24 IMRF 23,552.34

52164 11/30/24 NICOR GAS 579.21

52165 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 34.50

52166 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 612.55

52167 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 1,363.56

52168 11/30/24 VERIZON WIRELESS 871.10

52169 11/30/24 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 2,000.00

60008 11/30/24 TROOP CONTRACTING, INC 71,921.10

Vendor Check Total 324,107.42

Check List Total 324,107.42

Check count = 45

Des Plaines Public Library

Check List
All Bank Accounts

November 22, 2024 - December 19, 2024

8-1 24



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

Vendor Checks

CDW GOVERNMENT 9004 12/19/24 334.77

202-5980430
Makerspace Donation
Expenses

Inv AB5PK2G; 12.13.24 334.77

Continental Resources, Inc. 9005 12/19/24 2,894.62

202-5980430
Makerspace Donation
Expenses

Inv 91171641; 11.30.24 2,894.62

Glowforge, Inc 9006 12/19/24 6,546.00

202-5980430
Makerspace Donation
Expenses

Inv 815143; 12.03.24 308.00

202-5980430
Makerspace Donation
Expenses

Inv 814784; 11.27.24 6,238.00

IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 9007 12/19/24 1,426.00

202-5980430
Makerspace Donation
Expenses

Staff Color Printer 1,426.00

ABLE CARD, LLC 20507 12/19/24 2,300.00

201-5970100 Supplies Inv 81541; 11.25.24 2,300.00

BAKER & TAYLOR 20508 12/19/24 16,219.36

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038694752 11.22

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038694752 37.18

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038706419 16.14

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038706419 47.02

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038706773 50.26

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038706773 171.50

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038706800 85.47

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038706800 338.24

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038710146 90.04

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038710146 481.34

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038711583 61.72

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038711583 133.69

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038704887 5.75

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038704887 25.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038703642 24.22

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038703642 102.77

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038709911 5.03

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038709911 12.13

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038719668 6.43

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038719668 35.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038709959 12.45

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038709959 56.28

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038709910 25.90

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038709910 57.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038703535 66.40

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038703535 269.61

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038691636 44.36

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038691636 221.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038700949 87.43

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038700949 965.35

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038711992 890.59

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038711993 128.60

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038706244 198.54

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038706245 33.45

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038702158 29.25

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

November 2024

9-1 25



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038702158 174.30

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038689037 21.20

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038689037 95.21

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038699422 25.42

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038699422 133.57

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038701979 683.61

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038701980 102.95

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038696148 720.29

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038696149 77.85

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038694785 6.43

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038694785 26.09

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038694686 23.54

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038694686 99.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038689068 9.74

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038689068 25.46

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038682229 84.17

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038682229 217.25

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038664657 13.45

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038664657 68.54

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038669838 53.92

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038669838 299.22

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038692856 33.27

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038692856 173.15

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038684813 15.20

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038684813 31.55

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038681725 3.74

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038681725 18.40

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038681711 4.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038681711 25.19

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038686725 74.70

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038686725 328.58

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038693461 13.29

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038693461 46.11

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038684995 856.38

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038684996 118.99

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038687776 961.54

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038687777 119.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038691372 261.11

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038691373 25.60

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038674289 42.32

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038674289 165.63

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038674179 27.82

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038674179 100.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038673812 25.22

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038673812 57.05

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038681596 24.90

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038681596 89.82

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038673882 60.67

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038673882 520.80

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038674008 80.37

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038674008 320.50

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038629797 401.33

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038629798 60.69

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038660410 549.05

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038660411 61.36

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038662879 159.94

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

November 2024

9-2 26



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038662880 23.50

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038669213 615.60

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038669214 84.48

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038653760 659.40

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038653761 87.19

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038665813 654.15

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038665814 82.06

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038670056 84.39

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 2038574769 9.10

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV# 2038574769 272.13

BISHOP PLUMBING, INC. 20509 12/19/24 1,195.00

201-5930010 R&M Equipment Inv 60714759; 11.13.24 1,195.00

CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 20510 12/19/24 4,799.29

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 253220; 11.14.24 99.80

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 253414; 11.20.24 266.39

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 253278; 11.15.24 270.60

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 252399; 10.25.24 873.79

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 252055; 10.16.24 1,004.26

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 252398; 10.25.24 737.55

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 252397; 10.25.24 249.50

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 252410; 10.25.24 1,297.40

COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 20511 12/19/24 698.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures Inv 271359 698.00

CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES CORP 20512 12/19/24 4,892.50

201-5930320 Cleaning/Custodial Services Inv 32375; 11.15.24 4,892.50

D&Z HOUSE OF BOOKS 20513 12/19/24 1,470.84

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 2024/I000205; 11.05.24 129.76

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 2024/I000160; 11.12.24 1,341.08

D.E.S. Painting, Inc. 20514 12/19/24 3,450.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures Inv 50018; 12.03.24 3,450.00

FITTLE, LLC 20515 12/19/24 2,720.00

201-5930210 Rental of Equipment Inv 6411128; 10.28.24 1,360.00

201-5930210 Rental of Equipment Inv 6528002; 11.27.24 1,360.00

FLOOD BROTHERS DISPOSAL & RECYCLING SERVICES 20516 12/19/24 684.73

201-5930490 Refuse Contract Inv 7840592; 11.06.24 684.73

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS 20517 12/19/24 1,098.05

201-5970170 Janitorial Invoice # WO-578422-1 1,098.05

ILLINOIS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION 20518 12/19/24 55.00

201-5920202 Conferences Inv 300769; 11.26.24 55.00

IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 20519 12/19/24 4,555.29

201-5930010 R&M Equipment Inv 41031; 11.12.24 1,675.29

202-5980410 Computer Hardware Inv 410732; 11.25.24 1,426.00

201-5930010 R&M Equipment Inv 410293; 11.15.24 1,454.00

IMPACT NETWORKING, LLC. 20520 12/19/24 617.19

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

November 2024

9-3 27



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5930010 R&M Equipment Inv 3365409; 11.11.24 617.19

JOHN G DONAHUE 20521 12/19/24 180.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Event Presentation 180.00

JOURNAL AND TOPICS NEWSPAPERS 20522 12/19/24 640.00

201-5920210 Marketing Inv 193364; 11.06.24 640.00

Larry Huffman 20523 12/19/24 60.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Event Presentation 60.00

LIMRICC 20524 12/19/24 64,490.49

201-2401002 Payroll Liabilities November 2024 64,490.49

MidAmerica Books 20525 12/19/24 144.87

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 0028768; 2.29.2024 144.87

MIDWEST TAPE 20526 12/19/24 6,186.54

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506365196 64.94

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV# 506365196 201.59

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506365198 6.30

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506365198 20.79

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506365194 13.56

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV# 506365194 247.94

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506365195 48.00

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506365195 143.90

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506400231 77.98

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506400230 74.98

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506400229 37.49

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506400227 29.24

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506401129 27.75

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506401129 119.95

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506401126 12.01

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV# 506401126 43.17

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506401128 28.28

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506401128 125.95

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506353687 64.48

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506353684 202.45

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506353685 155.96

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506120953 52.48

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506120955 61.48

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506275143 123.70

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506275145 143.96

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506298861 61.05

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506298861 337.39

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506294079 37.17

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV# 506294079 107.61

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506294078 107.88

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506294078 458.03

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506332409 60.81

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV# 506332409 192.60

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506332408 141.05

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506332408 677.53

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV# 506332407 221.68

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506332407 1,051.08

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506321806 119.97

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

November 2024

9-4 28



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506321807 155.96

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506321808 128.96

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506322211 128.96

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV# 506321809 70.48

OAKBROOK MECHANICAL SERVICES 20527 12/19/24 3,230.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures Inv 41033; 12.02.24 3,230.00

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP, INC. 20528 12/19/24 47,042.81

201-5980420 Computer Software Inv 81481; 11.15.24 653.40

201-5920110 Professional Services Inv 81754; 12.04.24 35,455.59

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services Inv 81755; 12.04.24 2,318.00

201-5980420 Computer Software Inv 81755; 12.04.24 4,309.34

201-5980410 Computer Hardware Inv 81646; 11.21.24 3,374.88

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services Inv 81759; 12.04.24 931.60

OVERDRIVE, INC. 20529 12/19/24 5,134.78

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 01018MA4373524; 11.30.24 150.95

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 01018MA24374607; 11.30.24 4,574.01

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 01018CP24370048; 11.30.24 161.41

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 01018CP24370442; 11.30.24 248.41

Playaway Products LLC 20530 12/19/24 189.97

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books Inv 480623; 11.07.24 189.97

RAILS 20531 12/19/24 15,000.00

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services
Inv 13487; 12.03.24 - 12.01.24 -
11.30.25

15,000.00

Schaumburg Township District Library 20532 12/19/24 92.59

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Event Presentation; 1.28.25 92.59

SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 20533 12/19/24 284.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Inv 64108671; 10.15.24 284.00

SEN SOURCE 20534 12/19/24 669.00

201-5930010 R&M Equipment
Inv 60963; 10.01.24 - 12/31/24 -
12/31/25

669.00

THOMAS KLISE/CRIMSON MULTIMEDIA 20535 12/19/24 1,074.45

201-5970630 Visual Materials Inv 017757; 11.12.24 60.00

201-5970630 Visual Materials Inv 017756; 11.12.24 517.12

201-5970630 Visual Materials Inv 017927; 11.20.24 497.33

Check List Total 200,376.14

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

November 2024

9-5 29



ACH Number ACH Date Payee Amount

Vendor Checks

52159 11/30/24 BANKCARD SERVICES 20,445.34

52160 11/30/24 ADP 988.21

52161 11/30/24 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 300.00

52162 11/30/24 FRIENDS OF THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 1,063.37

52163 11/30/24 IMRF 23,552.34

52164 11/30/24 NICOR GAS 579.21

52165 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 34.50

52166 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 612.55

52167 11/30/24 COMCAST CABLE 1,363.56

52168 11/30/24 VERIZON WIRELESS 871.10

52169 11/30/24 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 2,000.00

60008 11/30/24 TROOP CONTRACTING, INC 71,921.10

Vendor Check Total 123,731.28

Check List Total 123,731.28

Check count = 12

Des Plaines Public Library

ACH Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

10-1 30



J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
A

p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

B
a
la

n
c

e
 S

h
e

e
t

C
a
s
h
 &

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

$
5
,4

0
7
,2

1
3

5
,7

5
3
,2

9
8

7
,7

3
0
,7

1
4

7
,2

0
5
,5

6
1

6
,7

2
3
,9

7
3

6
,6

6
7
,0

0
6

7
,5

7
1
,8

8
5

8
,6

6
8
,3

7
5

7
,8

7
5
,9

6
9

8
,0

0
7
,4

0
5

7
,6

1
2
,2

5
4

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

 (
M

-T
-D

)

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 T

a
x
e
s

-
7
9
2
,1

1
0

2
,5

2
1
,4

4
9

(2
2
,9

8
4
)

1
0
,0

5
4

1
,2

1
1
,6

4
5

1
,4

1
5
,0

6
1

8
5
4
,8

4
3

- 

1
2
1
,3

2
2

2
3
,7

6
4

8
9
,4

6
6

2
6
,8

0
0

1
0
2
,1

2
0

5
2
9
,0

0
2

1
3
7
,6

7
1

3
3
8
,2

6
5

3
8
,8

7
8

3
8
,3

5
9

2
3
1
,4

3
1

1
2
1
,3

2
2

8
1
5
,8

7
4

2
,6

1
0
,9

1
5

2
6
,8

0
0

7
9
,1

3
6

5
3
9
,0

5
7

1
,3

4
9
,3

1
6

1
,7

5
3
,3

2
7

3
8
,8

7
8

8
9
3
,2

0
2

2
3
1
,4

3
1

- 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 (

M
-T

-D
)

P
a
y
ro

ll 
&

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

3
4
2
,6

0
7

4
0
3
,2

5
3

2
6
2
,9

4
3

3
4
0
,8

6
3

5
2
0
,4

0
0

3
4
0
,9

7
6

2
7
2
,9

2
6

4
0
5
,0

5
0

2
7
2
,0

8
3

2
7
7
,5

8
7

5
0
8
,2

5
8

O
th

e
r 

E
x
p
e
n
s
e

4
7
7
,9

4
7

2
4
7
,2

0
4

2
6
0
,9

3
5

2
3
6
,7

8
3

1
8
7
,8

0
5

1
1
4
,0

1
6

2
6
0
,7

0
1

4
5
2
,2

7
8

3
7
1
,1

9
9

4
5
2
,1

5
0

2
3
6
,0

2
4

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n

 A
/P

 &
 A

J
E

's
(2

3
6
,1

4
6
)

(1
8
0
,6

6
8
)

1
0
9
,6

2
1

(2
5
,6

9
3
)

(1
4
7
,4

8
1
)

1
4
1
,0

3
2

(8
9
,1

9
0
)

(2
0
0
,4

9
1
)

1
8
8
,0

0
2

3
2
,0

2
9

(1
1
7
,6

9
9
)

5
8
4
,4

0
8

4
6
9
,7

9
0

6
3
3
,4

9
9

5
5
1
,9

5
3

5
6
0
,7

2
4

5
9
6
,0

2
4

4
4
4
,4

3
7

6
5
6
,8

3
7

8
3
1
,2

8
4

7
6
1
,7

6
6

6
2
6
,5

8
3

- 

N
e
t 

In
c
re

a
s
e
/(

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
)

(4
6
3
,0

8
6
)

3
4
6
,0

8
4

1
,9

7
7
,4

1
6

(5
2
5
,1

5
3
)

(4
8
1
,5

8
8
)

(5
6
,9

6
7
)

9
0
4
,8

8
0

1
,0

9
6
,4

9
0

(7
9
2
,4

0
6
)

1
3
1
,4

3
6

(3
9
5
,1

5
2
)

- 

D
E

S
 P

L
A

IN
E

S
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

F
o

r 
th

e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n

d
e

d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
3
1
, 

2
0
2
4

O
th

e
r 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

1
1-

1

31



32



November 2024 

COMINGS & GOINGS 
PROMOTION 
Sarah Szeszol - FT Creative Space Coordinator 
from FT Teen Services Assistant 

Albert and Linda Thomas donated $200 to the 
Library for purchasing Large Print non-fiction books. 

We received an anonymous $20 Donation 

The Des Plaines Memory 
Newsletter returns and 
celebrates Veteran's Day 
with  a recorded interview 
with local resident and 
veteran Tony Vieceli about 
his and his brother’s 
experiences serving during 
World War II. 

$500.00 for Professional Headshot for LinkedIn and 
work profiles. 

$326.44 for Sony Picture Classics Film Programming, 
January - December 2025. 

$795 for additional film programming for Youth, 
Adults and Teens. 

The Canvas Update DONATIONS 

AROUND THE LIBRARY 

DPPL CELEBRATES 

October >>>November 

33



 NOVEMBER PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
YOUTH TEEN ADULT 

34



Events, Programs, Outreach & Classes

2024 2023

Collection Usage YTD

500k

1 000k

Patron Assistance YTDCollection Usage YTD 

1,268,726

Attendance All - YTD 

2024 2023

Patron Assistance YTD

100k

172,181
163,625

On November 2024

Events, Programs & Classes

Bookings All -  YTD

2024
606,321

2023
425,687

2024
10,786

2023
9,670

1,181,460

42%

Attendance In Person - YTD 

Events, Programs & Classes

Bookings In Person - YTD

2024
1,735

54%

2023
1,126

Computer Usage YTD
2024 2023

Public

Wireless

0 10k 20k 30k 40k

37,320

46,597

31,637

29,238

2024 2023

Physical

Virtual

1M 2M 3M 4M 5M

Traffic YTD

285,763

344,259

5,155,405

4,969,136 4%

20%

Events, Programs & Classes

2023
40,849

2024
52,896

29%

5%
7%

25%

12%

8%

2024 2023

New Library Cards Issued YTD

0

2k

New Library Cards Issued
YTD

0%

3,3983,413

35



2024 Year to Date Statistics 
October 2024

Year to Date 2024 1,181,460 
Year to Date 2023 1,268,726 
% Change -7%

PATRON ASSISTANCE
Year to Date 2024 172,181 
Year to Date 2023 163,625 
% Change 5%

EVENTS, PROGRAMS, AND CLASSES- BOOKINGS
Year to Date 2024 10,786 
Year to Date 2023 9,670 
% Change 12%

EVENTS, PROGRAMS, OUTREACH, AND CLASSES-ATTENDANCE
Year to Date 2024 606,321 
Year to Date 2023 425,687 
% Change 42%

IN PERSON EVENTS
Bookings
Year to Date 2024 1,735
Year to Date 2023 1,126
% Change 54%

Attendance
Year to Date 2024 52,896
Year to Date 2023 40,849
% Change 29%

TRAFFIC
Physical Visits (gate count)
Year to Date 2024 344,259
Year to Date 2023 285,763
% Change 20%

Virtual Visits (catalog, website, mobile app)
Year to Date 2024 4,969,136
Year to Date 2023 5,155,405
% Change -4%

LIBRARY CARDS ISSUED
Year to Date new library cards 2024 3,413
Year to Date new library cards 2023 3,398
% Change 0%

COMPUTER USAGE
Public Computers
Year to Date 2024 46,597 
Year to Date 2023 37,320 
% Change 25%

Wireless
Year to Date 2024 31,637 
Year to Date 2023 29,238 
% Change 8%

COLLECTION USAGE

36



2
0

2
4

 S
TA

TI
S

TI
C

S
 R

EP
O

R
T 

JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
S

T
S

EP
TE

M
B

ER
O

C
TO

B
ER

N
O

V
EM

B
ER

D
EC

EM
B

ER
Y

TD

C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
 U

S
A

G
E

Ph
ys

ic
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
54

,0
66

51
,9

47
55

,0
57

56
,3

36
46

,2
43

53
,4

11
58

,7
86

52
,3

02
44

,7
67

51
,8

46
48

,4
30

57
3,

19
1

E-
m

at
er

ia
ls

17
,5

25
16

,4
47

17
,6

46
16

,1
65

17
,4

00
16

,7
57

17
,7

08
15

,9
74

15
,9

18
17

,2
46

17
,0

94
18

5,
88

0
IL

L 
77

5
66

6
66

3
51

0
51

0
41

9
61

9
54

6
50

3
57

7
43

4
6,

22
2

D
at

ab
as

es
 

49
,6

97
46

,9
93

38
,9

09
35

,1
71

28
,1

67
31

,1
23

41
,9

97
46

,7
58

47
,1

67
50

,1
85

41
6,

16
7

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
1

2
2

,0
6

3
1

1
6

,0
5

3
1

1
2

,2
7

5
7

3
,0

1
1

9
9

,3
2

4
9

8
,7

5
4

1
0

8
,2

3
6

1
1

0
,8

1
9

1
0

7
,9

4
6

1
1

6
,8

3
6

1
1

6
,1

4
3

1
,1

8
1

,4
6

0

Ph
ys

ic
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls
52

,6
85

54
,0

26
62

,8
78

55
,9

95
53

,6
87

56
,6

60
60

,6
75

60
,3

20
49

,1
53

56
,8

87
53

,7
79

61
6,

74
5

E-
m

at
er

ia
ls

14
,9

73
13

,0
13

14
,3

38
14

,5
79

16
,4

04
16

,6
32

14
,9

09
14

,4
61

14
,6

20
15

,8
83

16
,5

12
16

6,
32

4

IL
L

63
9

63
9

76
4

63
1

57
3

63
7

63
7

69
3

67
3

68
1

65
5

7,
22

2

D
at

ab
as

es
38

,4
13

35
,4

95
45

,7
84

44
,0

38
43

,5
71

44
,9

85
48

,4
44

47
,7

43
45

,6
63

43
,1

00
41

,1
99

47
8,

43
5

2
0

2
3

To
ta

l
1

0
6

,7
1

0
1

0
3

,1
7

3
1

2
3

,7
6

4
1

1
5

,2
4

3
1

1
4

,2
3

5
1

1
8

,9
1

4
1

2
4

,6
6

5
1

2
3

,2
1

7
1

1
0

,1
0

9
1

1
6

,5
5

1
1

1
2

,1
4

5
1

,2
6

8
,7

2
6

P
A

TR
O

N
 A

S
S

IS
TA

N
C

E

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
  

2,
13

2
2,

70
0

2,
50

4
1,

86
1

1,
57

3
3,

37
0

3,
28

8
2,

28
9

2,
08

2
2,

36
3

2,
63

7
26

,7
99

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
6,

29
9

7,
20

0
6,

80
5

6,
98

8
6,

46
8

6,
97

7
6,

99
0

6,
34

6
6,

25
4

7,
47

4
6,

33
2

74
,1

33
Pa

tr
on

 A
cc

ou
nt

s
6,

26
3

6,
26

7
6,

55
3

6,
09

9
5,

21
4

6,
97

1
6,

52
4

5,
98

4
5,

70
9

8,
21

3
6,

11
2

69
,9

09
Se

cu
rit

y
13

6
10

0
14

0
82

42
0

15
1

23
5

17
3

20
6

75
1,

34
0

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
1

4
,8

3
0

1
6

,2
6

7
1

6
,0

0
2

1
5

,0
3

0
1

3
,2

9
7

1
7

,3
1

8
1

3
,6

6
5

1
4

,8
5

4
1

4
,2

1
8

1
8

,2
5

6
1

5
,1

5
6

1
7

2
,1

8
1

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
1,

27
2

1,
90

6
2,

08
6

1,
91

4
1,

79
4

6,
26

9
3,

28
0

1,
76

4
1,

73
4

2,
13

9
1,

88
9

26
,0

47

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
6,

54
6

6,
06

6
7,

19
5

6,
15

1
6,

24
8

6,
80

2
6,

12
7

6,
55

0
5,

33
7

6,
40

2
5,

97
3

69
,3

97

Pa
tr

on
 A

cc
ou

nt
s

5,
95

0
5,

43
3

7,
74

3
6,

18
8

5,
61

6
6,

30
7

6,
30

0
6,

96
3

5,
99

6
6,

27
9

5,
40

6
68

,1
81

Se
cu

rit
y

15
4

14
3

96
11

0
84

89
89

10
4

21
0

8
89

8

2
0

2
3

To
ta

l
1

3
,9

2
2

1
3

,5
4

8
1

7
,1

2
0

1
4

,3
6

3
1

3
,7

4
2

1
9

,4
6

7
1

5
,7

9
6

1
5

,3
8

1
1

3
,0

8
8

1
4

,8
2

0
1

3
,2

7
6

1
6

3
,6

2
5

EV
EN

TS
, 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

 A
N

D
 C

LA
S

S
ES

-B
O

O
K

IN
G

S

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

 P
er

so
n

64
13

3
72

48
84

86
69

1
22

13
3

99
81

1
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ic
es

 V
irt

ua
l

 - 
 

0
 - 

 
-  

3
2

1
2

3
3

14
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 In
 P

er
so

n
64

85
74

88
85

79
88

77
74

10
6

10
4

92
4

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 V

irt
ua

l 
10

16
11

10
9

11
8

13
10

14
9

12
1

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
12

13
18

23
19

20
15

17
10

15
18

18
0

Pu
bl

ic
 s

tu
dy

 r
oo

m
s 

72
7

87
2

82
6

89
3

74
7

72
7

80
8

69
2

78
1

93
3

73
0

8,
73

6
2

0
2

4
To

ta
l

8
7

7
1

,1
1

9
1

,0
0

1
1

,0
6

2
9

4
4

9
2

6
9

9
0

8
0

1
8

9
9

1
,2

0
4

9
6

3
0

1
0

,7
8

6

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

 P
er

so
n

18
29

19
30

21
27

35
2

21
32

11
7

35
1

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 V

irt
ua

l
8

1
0

2
2

0
2

0
0

15
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 In
 P

er
so

n
43

77
69

68
62

66
84

79
66

92
69

77
5

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 V

irt
ua

l 
15

14
16

14
14

13
10

10
12

15
13

14
6

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
10

16
35

27
20

18
19

30
28

37
21

26
1

Pu
bl

ic
 s

tu
dy

 r
oo

m
s 

68
6

74
4

79
5

71
0

69
4

70
9

68
2

72
2

72
7

87
7

77
6

8,
12

2
2

0
2

3
To

ta
l

7
8

0
8

8
0

9
3

5
8

4
9

8
1

1
8

3
5

8
3

2
8

4
3

8
5

6
1

,0
5

3
9

9
6

0
9

,6
7

0

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

 P
er

so
n

32
0

1,
28

4
1,

03
5

1,
05

7
31

3
6,

08
6

3,
17

5
89

99
1

1,
13

7
1,

21
7

16
,7

04
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ic
es

 V
irt

ua
l

11
,6

24
15

,4
64

8,
99

4
14

,9
39

17
,4

88
41

,5
52

38
,4

25
8,

99
9

20
,1

71
11

,2
03

19
,1

71
20

8,
03

0
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 In
 P

er
so

n
1,

08
5

1,
37

5
4,

00
5

1,
98

2
1,

12
5

2,
62

6
4,

58
5

1,
08

2
1,

95
1

10
,0

32
6,

34
4

36
,1

92
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 V
irt

ua
l 

26
,1

40
24

,4
47

17
,8

40
23

,0
03

26
,1

35
50

,0
20

46
,5

79
19

,3
96

21
,8

95
20

,1
38

31
,5

83
30

7,
17

6
O

ut
sid

e 
gr

ou
ps

 
23

7
13

4
22

9
1,

25
7

25
1

40
6

17
9

19
8

13
1

10
7

32
9

3,
45

8
Pu

bl
ic

 s
tu

dy
 r

oo
m

s 
1,

26
5

1,
45

5
1,

34
8

1,
42

5
1,

19
0

1,
12

2
1,

27
2

1,
09

6
1,

24
3

1,
52

0
1,

22
6

14
,1

62
O

ut
re

ac
h-

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

94
1

1,
54

2
1,

11
6

2,
26

8
3,

84
2

1,
12

7
83

5
1,

58
5

96
8

2,
38

6
1,

24
1

17
,8

51
O

ut
re

ac
h-

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

16
2

22
9

67
0

28
9

23
7

35
4

87
15

5
22

7
14

8
19

0
2,

74
8

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
4

1
,7

7
4

4
5

,9
3

0
3

5
,2

3
7

4
6

,2
2

0
5

0
,5

8
1

1
0

3
,2

9
3

9
5

,1
3

7
3

2
,6

0
0

4
7

,5
7

7
4

6
,6

7
1

6
1

,3
0

1
0

6
0

6
,3

2
1

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

 P
er

so
n

98
9

1,
31

4
1,

69
8

1,
55

9
49

2
4,

59
5

10
,1

32
20

0
56

7
98

9
1,

22
0

23
,7

55

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 V

irt
ua

l
29

,0
89

11
,1

89
13

,7
50

13
,1

83
8,

93
3

8,
43

7
10

,0
63

12
,4

12
14

,7
63

4,
80

8
9,

82
1

13
6,

44
8

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

 P
er

so
n

37
0

76
6

1,
38

4
2,

06
8

70
2

90
2

6,
55

6
82

4
1,

26
5

1,
05

9
1,

19
8

17
,0

94

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 V

irt
ua

l 
20

,1
87

22
,7

86
20

,7
33

18
,9

18
16

,2
57

15
,0

56
16

,9
76

20
,1

59
22

,3
06

12
,4

04
17

,3
76

20
3,

15
8

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

13
0

24
2

1,
46

4
1,

33
2

41
2

25
8

26
4

41
3

52
5

58
3

36
0

5,
98

3

Pu
bl

ic
 s

tu
dy

 r
oo

m
s 

1,
19

5
1,

31
5

1,
40

7
1,

20
9

1,
16

4
1,

09
3

1,
00

2
1,

11
0

1,
30

2
1,

47
0

1,
26

4
13

,5
31

O
ut

re
ac

h-
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
1,

65
2

2,
54

7
2,

03
1

2,
09

8
4,

28
4

1,
40

0
1,

01
9

96
4

1,
23

0
1,

88
3

92
3

20
,0

31

O
ut

re
ac

h-
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
13

4
21

9
1,

38
8

32
3

16
6

70
0

33
3

48
5

37
2

1,
09

0
47

7
5,

68
7

2
0

2
3

To
ta

l
5

3
,7

4
6

4
0

,3
7

8
4

3
,8

5
5

4
0

,6
9

0
3

2
,4

1
0

3
2

,4
4

1
4

6
,3

4
5

3
6

,5
6

7
4

2
,3

3
0

2
4

,2
8

6
3

2
,6

3
9

0
4

2
5

,6
8

7

EV
EN

TS
, 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

, 
O

U
TR

EA
C

H
 &

 C
LA

S
S

ES
-A

TT
EN

D
A

N
C

E

37



TR
A

FF
IC

2
0

2
4

Ph
ys

ic
al

 V
isi

ts
 (

ga
te

 c
ou

nt
)

25
,1

15
28

,4
01

31
,0

15
33

,6
55

27
,8

26
33

,5
05

30
,7

87
30

,4
20

33
,0

52
44

,8
53

25
,6

30
3

4
4

,2
5

9

2
0

2
3

Ph
ys

ic
al

 V
isi

ts
 (

ga
te

 c
ou

nt
)

21
,6

59
22

,3
65

27
,0

32
24

,3
28

21
,6

22
32

,8
52

26
,8

63
36

,1
30

24
,0

59
22

,9
33

25
,9

20
2

8
5

,7
6

3

2
0

2
4

V
irt

ua
l v

isi
ts

 (
ca

ta
lo

g,
 w

eb
sit

e,
 m

ob
ile

 a
pp

) 
44

0,
01

7
46

4,
76

3
46

4,
80

2
43

6,
42

9
43

9,
95

4
44

7,
67

7
46

1,
82

2
45

5,
13

3
44

3,
99

0
44

3,
70

0
47

0,
84

9
4

,9
6

9
,1

3
6

2
0

2
3

V
irt

ua
l v

isi
ts

 (
ca

ta
lo

g,
 w

eb
sit

e,
 m

ob
ile

 a
pp

)
48

0,
73

5
44

4,
59

8
47

3,
76

7
45

6,
86

9
46

8,
39

2
47

8,
43

8
48

6,
19

3
50

6,
32

8
48

7,
62

2
43

0,
40

5
44

2,
05

8
5

,1
5

5
,4

0
5

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 C
A

R
D

S
 I

S
S

U
ED

2
0

2
4

N
um

be
r 

of
 n

ew
 li

br
ar

y 
ca

rd
s 

27
7

31
6

24
9

31
3

25
1

32
8

23
0

28
4

28
0

52
5

36
0

3
,4

1
3

2
0

2
3

N
um

be
r 

of
 n

ew
 li

br
ar

y 
ca

rd
s 

25
9

22
2

50
1

31
3

31
1

38
7

27
8

35
6

24
6

29
1

23
4

3
,3

9
8

C
O

M
P

U
TE

R
 U

S
A

G
E

Pu
bl

ic
 c

om
pu

te
rs

-Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s

78
7

1,
19

6
1,

61
9

1,
20

6
1,

22
1

2,
19

6
1,

05
1

1,
64

7
1,

28
8

1,
39

7
1,

58
0

15
,1

88

Pu
bl

ic
 c

om
pu

te
rs

-A
du

lt
2,

54
5

3,
35

5
2,

95
7

3,
32

9
3,

23
3

3,
08

5
3,

60
1

3,
39

4
3,

02
9

2,
88

1
31

,4
09

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
3

,3
3

2
4

,5
5

1
4

,5
7

6
4

,5
3

5
4

,4
5

4
5

,2
8

1
4

,6
5

2
5

,0
4

1
4

,3
1

7
1

,3
9

7
4

,4
6

1
0

4
6

,5
9

7

Pu
bl

ic
 c

om
pu

te
rs

-Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s

25
3

24
8

39
3

36
5

28
6

60
5

58
2

45
0

23
4

36
3

32
9

4,
10

8

Pu
bl

ic
 c

om
pu

te
rs

-A
du

lt
2,

68
8

2,
90

3
3,

34
0

3,
27

0
3,

30
9

3,
09

1
2,

88
0

3,
18

4
2,

79
9

3,
59

4
2,

15
4

33
,2

12
2

0
2

3
To

ta
l

2
,9

4
1

3
,1

5
1

3
,7

3
3

3
,6

3
5

3
,5

9
5

3
,6

9
6

3
,4

6
2

3
,6

3
4

3
,0

3
3

3
,9

5
7

2
,4

8
3

0
3

7
,3

2
0

W
ire

le
ss

 
2,

51
8

2,
90

4
2,

90
4

2,
82

7
2,

63
0

2,
67

8
2,

58
7

2,
90

4
2,

83
1

3,
50

4
3,

35
0

31
,6

37

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
2

,5
1

8
2

,9
0

4
2

,9
0

4
2

,8
2

7
2

,6
3

0
2

,6
7

8
2

,5
8

7
2

,9
0

4
2

,8
3

1
3

,5
0

4
3

,3
5

0
0

3
1

,6
3

7

W
ire

le
ss

2,
36

0
2,

61
9

2,
73

4
2,

71
5

2,
54

2
2,

74
5

2,
38

2
2,

67
8

2,
70

0
3,

01
4

2,
74

9
29

,2
38

2
0

2
3

To
ta

l
2

,3
6

0
2

,6
1

9
2

,7
3

4
2

,7
1

5
2

,5
4

2
2

,7
4

5
2

,3
8

2
2

,6
7

8
2

,7
0

0
3

,0
1

4
2

,7
4

9
0

2
9

,2
3

8

38



Page 1

Illinois State Library 

ILLINOIS PUBLIC LIBRARY PER CAPITA AND  
EQUALIZATION AID GRANT APPLICATION 

As required by The Illinois Library System Act (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3030.200 (a)(2)(I) and (J)), to be eligible for funding, the 
applying public library shall have completed the Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) and the annual certification 
process to confirm eligibility for grants administered by the Illinois State Library. 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees to expend the funds received for the purposes outlined in the application as ap-
proved by the Illinois State Library, and as stipulated by the Illinois Library Systems Act (75 ILCS 10/8 and 10/8.1) and Illi-
nois State Library Grant Programs (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3035.115 and 3035.135). 

The Library Board of Trustees affirms that all grant funds received as a result of this application shall be used to provide 
public library service to its community by supplementing the library’s regular budget and that it will not reduce, nor cause 
to have reduced, the public library’s levy in the current or next fiscal year. 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees that the Illinois State Library or its designee shall have the right to examine any of 
the records directly related to this grant. 

Legal Name of Library: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Library’s Control Number:  ________________  Branch Number:  ________________  Today’s Date:  ________________   

Contact information of the person completing this grant application: 

Preparer’s Name: __________________________________    _________________________________________  

Preparer’s Title:   _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Preparer’s Phone Number:_______________________________________________________________________  

Preparer’s Email Address:________________________________________________________________________  

By checking this box, I certify: 1) that I have the authority to submit this application on behalf of the Library Board 
of Trustees, and 2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. The 
Library Board of Trustees is aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or claims may be subject to 
civil, criminal or administrative penalties.

ALEXI GIANNOULIAS • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796

ilsos govilsos.gov

(First Name) (Last Name) 

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois. January 2023 – 1 – LD A 179.11
39



Changes in the population count for the eligible service area must be documented and supporting information that details 
the increase or decrease shall be submitted electronically with this application. Documentation must include one of the 
following: 

A U.S. Census certification (e.g., correction or special census) that has been filed with the Office of the Secretary of•
State Index Department prior to submission of the application.

For population changes, annexations or disconnects that are typically not documented by the U.S. Census, the library•
must submit appropriate and substantial supporting information, including a certified population count.  Examples in-
clude, but are not limited to: legal documentation from an appropriate municipal corporate authority or a library dis-
trict’s referenda questions and certified results.

If the population has not changed, no additional documentation is necessary.  

Service Area Population ________________    

Part I.  Review of Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries (© Illinois Library Association, 2019) 

To be eligible for a per capita grant, a public library shall show that it will either meet or show progress toward meeting 
the Illinois library standards as most recently adopted by the Illinois Library Association (75 ILCS 10/8.1). 

A grant applicant with below standard performance levels must raise or improve its performance levels in relation to the 
standards according to the objectives, time frames and priorities the library shall state in the application and which are 
consistent with the terms of the plan of service of the system of which it is a member. (23 ILAC 3035.115) 

The Library Director and the Board of Trustees shall review the entirety of Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois 
Public Libraries. To complete this application, refer to the checklist at the conclusion of each chapter. 

Chapter 1: Core Standards 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all Core Standards, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 2

40



Chapter 2: Governance and Administration 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Governance and Administration checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Chapter 3: Personnel 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Personnel checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 3

41



Chapter 4: Access 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Access checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 5: Building Infrastructure and Maintenance 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance checklists, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 4

42



Chapter 6: Safety 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Safety checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 7: Collection Management 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Collection Management checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

43



Chapter 8: System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the System Membership Responsibilities and Resource Sharing checklist, please indicate. (150 
word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 9: Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Reference Service checklist and the Reader’s Advisory Service checklist, please indicate. (150 
word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 6

44



Chapter 10: Programming 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Programming checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 11: Youth/Young Adult Services 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Youth/Young Adult Services checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

45



Chapter 12: Technology  
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Technology checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 13: Marketing, Promotion and Collaboration 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Marketing, Promotion and Collaboration checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

46



Part II: Planned Use of Grant Funds 
 
Describe objectives and priorities for use of grant monies to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards 
in Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries (23 ILAC 3035.115). Use general categories in identifying ac-
tual planned expenditures. Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brands. 

Page 9

47



48



 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report 
  
 

Control Number: ____________________________________ City: _________________________________________ 

Library Name: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2023: ___________________________________________ 
 
Based on the library’s Planned Use of Grant Funds from the FY2023 grant application, report use of Per Capita Grant funds 
awarded to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards in Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois 
Public Libraries (23 ILAC 3035.115). Do not include monetary figures or specific brands.  
 
Only check the standard(s) under which FY2023 Per Capita Grant funds were disbursed. Briefly report how grant funds were 
used and explain how grant funds helped meet or make progress toward meeting the applicable standard. 
 

    ❏   Core Standards — Chapter 1 

             

      ❏  Governance and Administration — Chapter 2 

 

      ❏  Personnel — Chapter 3 

 

      ❏  Access — Chapter 4 

 

      ❏  Building Infrastructure and Maintenance — Chapter 5 

 

            

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before January 30 

ALEXI GIANNOULIAS • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796 
 

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois by union employees. October 2024 – 1 – LD A 274.6

ilsos.gov

49



    ❏  Safety — Chapter 6 

 

    ❏  Collection Management — Chapter 7 

 

      ❏  System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing — Chapter 8 

 

      ❏  Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory — Chapter 9 

 

      ❏  Programming — Chapter 10 

 

 

      ❏  Youth/Young Adult Services — Chapter 11 

 

      ❏  Technology — Chapter 12  

       

      ❏  Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration — Chapter 13

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before January 30 

50



51


	BOARD MEETING NOTICE 12-19-24
	BOARD AGENDA 12-19-24
	This meeting will be video recorded, and available on the Library’s website.

	BOARD MINUTES 11-21-24
	The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

	MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES 11-21-24
	SEARCH COMMITTEE MINUTES 11-21-24
	The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m.

	2024.11 DPPL Financials (002)
	Footer
	Fund - 01
	Header
	Main

	CASH FLOW SUMMARY 2023
	november-2024_66311576(1)
	November Cover
	November Programs (1)
	FY2025 Per Capita Application
	FY2025 Per Capita Certificate of Eligibility Signed Draft
	Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report 2023
	Wings Thank You

	Legal Name of Library: Des Plaines Public Library
	Librarys Control Number: 30226
	Branch Number: 00
	Todays Date: 12/9/2024
	Preparers Name: Laurie 
	Last Name: Papadourakis
	Preparers Title: Acting Interim Director/Assistant Director
	Preparers Phone Number: 8473762776
	Preparers Email Address: lpapadourakis@dppl.org
	Pg1 certify check box: Yes
	Service Area Population: 60,675
	Page 2: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Core Standards. Standard 17: In addition to lending physical materials via Inter-Library Loan, the Library continues to expand our ability to share resources, for example, by participating in Find More Illinois. Standard 23: The Library budgeted (2025) for a facilities (MEP) audit to assess 5-year capital expenditures in order to  maintain the building and keep all facilities systems operating properly.
	meets all components of the Governance and Administration checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Governance and Administration Standards. Standard 1: After surveying the community in 2023, the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees approved a 2023 - 2025 Strategic Plan. The Library Director shares progress towards Strategic Goals every year in the November Monthly Board meeting.  Standard 4: Members of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees participate at the local level by meeting with local and state legislators. 
	meets all components of the Personnel checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Personnel Standards.Standard 3: The Library Director reviews the salary schedule annually and makes adjustments, benchmarking against other local, suburban libraries of similar size and population.Standard 8: The Library Director budgets for staff to attend relevant conferences, such as those held annually by PLA (Public Library Association), ILA (Illinois Library Association), and ALA (American Library Association). 
	meets all components of the Access checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Access Standards.Standard 1: The Head of Adult Services applied for, and received, an Age Options grant (Cook County), in order to purchase iPads for seniors in the community. We continue to pursue grants to increase accessibility for our patrons.Standard 7: The Library is currently building a makerspace, called The Canvas, complete with 3-D printers, sewing machines, laser cutters, and heat presses, to introduce the community to these technologies, and their capabilities. 
	meets all components of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance checklists please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance Standards.Standard 7: The Library has completed all of the necessary building capital projects outlined in an MEP Audit from 2020, including replacing a fire pump, and a 24 year-old HVAC chiller. The 2025 budget includes hiring an engineering firm to conduct the next 5-year building capital project assessment. Standard 13: When constructing the new makerspace, The Canvas, the Library installed energy-saving outlets that shut off power if movement is not sensed in the room. 
	meets all components of the Safety checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Safety Standards.Standard 4: The Library conducts CPR and AED training, as well as annual fire drills in coordination with the Des Plaines Fire Department. As we are a large facility (4 floors, 82,000 square feet) we purchased an additional AED machine. Standard 6: Emergency medical supplies are stocked in cabinets throughout the building. The items are inventoried, restocked, and replaced upon expiration. 
	meets all components of the Collection Management checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Collection Management Standards.Standard 1: In 2025, the Library Director and Board of Trustees allocated 10.9% of the operating budget to be spent on materials of all different types (books, Library of Things items, ebooks, eaudiobooks, etc.) for patrons.Standard 8: In response to patron use, and circulation/hold statistics, Adult Services selectors are allocating a higher percentage of collection development funds to electronic materials, such as ebooks and eaudiobooks. 
	word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all components of System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing Standards.Standard 1: Along with other libraries in the Cooperative Computer Systems (CCS) consortium, the Library participates in the new Find More Illinois resource-sharing network.  Standard 2: The Library's Materials Services team runs the picklist twice daily, pulling holds for other libraries' patrons, and sending them via the Reaching Across Illinois Library System (RAILS). 
	word limit_2: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Public Services Standards.Reference Service Standard 12: The Library serves as a Cook County early voting location for all elections. In the 2024 General Election, 12,876 citizens voted at our facility. Staff members come in one hour before the building opens on Congressional and General Election Day, and stand outside with iPads to assist folks in finding their polling place. In 2024, we assisted 70 voters before the Library building opened.Reference Service Standard 13: The Library maintains a local history website called Des Plaines Memory, adding photos and stories to the archive. Readers Advisory Service Standard 8: Readers' Services staff members respond to requests made in-person or on the phone at the Readers' Services desk, as well as via a comprehensive Readers Advisory form on the Library website. A new form for film recommendation requests was added in 2024.
	meets all components of the Programming checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Programming Standards.Standard 1: Library staff routinely requests funding for programs from the Friends of the Library, so that they can be free-of-charge to patrons. Some of those programs included a Lucky Diaz Concert for Youth Services, Summer Reading programs for Youth, Teens, and Adults, and film licensing so that the Library can show movies to the public. Standard 9: The Library routinely partners with local health facilities for free vaccines (COVID, flu) and blood donation. Every month, local and state politicians have tables in the building, so citizens can access their government. Quarterly, a representative from the Illinois Treasurer's Office assists patrons in locating unclaimed funds.  
	meets all components of the YouthYoung Adult Services checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Youth/Young Adult Services Standards.Standard 2: The Youth Services Department purchases physical and e-collections for all levels of development, from ages 0 - 12, including Board Books, Picture Books, Audiobooks, STEAM Kits, Graphic Novels, Flash Cards, Early Readers, and Chapter Books.Standard 6: The Library Director worked with State Senator Laura Murphy on an Intergovernmental Agreement for expanding free Library card access to all children attending schools in Des Plaines, regardless of whether or not they lived in the Library boundaries.Standard 19: Youth and Teen Services Librarians partner with all of the local schools to support the district's educational goals, as well as to introduce children to Library services.
	meets all components of the Technology checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Technology Standards.Standard 14: All Library computers and equipment (printers, copiers, network switches, etc.) are on a lifecycle program, and budgeted for replacement at appropriate intervals.Standard 15: The Library continues to upgrade/update cybersecurity protection, and best practices, to meet the latest threats, including staff use of MFA library-wide, as well as quarterly phishing tests. Standard 17: The Library pursues E-Rate reimbursements, routinely receiving funds for connectivity, as well as eligible hardware purchases (network switches), and, for the first time in 2024, eligible services (IT maintenance of eligible products).
	meets all components of the Marketing Promotion and Collaboration checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Des Plaines Public Library meets all Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration Standards.Standard 2: Library staff members routinely participate in activities with the Des Plaines Chamber of Commerce, Kiwanis Club of Des Plaines, Izaak Walton League, Maryville Academy, Self-Help Closet and Pantry of Des Plaines, Salvation Army, local school districts, and numerous other community organizations.Standard 10: The Library budgets annually for advertising in local papers, mailings, printing, and special event promotional items for patrons. The mailings, which indicate the promotional items, go to all households in Des Plaines, helping to reach non-Library users with our services. 
	actual planned expenditures Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brands: In 2025, the Des Plaines Public Library plans to use Per Capita funds for Collection Development (Chapter 7), in order to better meet the needs of our patrons. 
	Control Number: 30226
	City: Des Plaines
	Library Name: Des Plaines Public Library
	Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2021: 89495.63
	Check Box1: Off
	Text2: 
	Governance and Administration  Chapter 2: Off
	Text3: 
	Personnel  Chapter 3: On
	Text4: Staff members attended the following events for training and development: ALA conference, C2E2 Conference, ILA Reaching Forward Conference, Municipal Law Conference, ILA Legislative Meet-Up, HR Source Employment Law Conference, NY Comic Con, Chicago History Museum, etc. This meets Standard 8, as it supported staff in acquiring new skills, keeping current in the field, and renewing their enthusiasm for their work.
	Access  Chapter 4: Off
	Text5: 
	Building Infrastructure and Maintenance  Chapter 5: Off
	Text6: 
	Safety  Chapter 6: Off
	Text7: 
	Collection Management  Chapter 7: Off
	Text8: 
	System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing  Chapter 8: Off
	Text9: 
	Public Services Reference and ReadersAdvisory  Chapter 9: Off
	Text10: 
	Programming  Chapter 10: Off
	Text11: 
	YouthYoung Adult Services  Chapter 11: Off
	Text12: 
	Technology  Chapter 12: On
	Text13: We replaced aging network switches, which are necessary to Library operations as they act as data traffic controllers, sending information between networked computers, printers, and servers throughout the building. This meets Standard 14, as it qualifies as an improvement of local area networking technological services.
	Marketing Promotion and Collaboration  Chapter 13: Off
	Text14: 


